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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Members of the County Board
Morgan County, lllinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Morgan County, lllinois, as of and
for the year ended August 31, 2010, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
Morgan County, lllincis' management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generalily accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. '

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Morgan County, lllinois, as of August 31, 2010, and the
respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a separate report
dated January 24, 2011 on our consideration of Morgan County, Hlinois’ internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Audit Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 2 though 2K and retirement fund historical
data and budgetary comparison information on pages 28 through 38 are not a required part of
the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did
not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Morgan County, lllinois’ basic financial statements. The non required
supplementary information on pages 39 through 51 are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements or required supplementary
information of Morgan County, llinois. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
presented in ali material respects in refation o the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

”’Wwﬁu Ao |5 wiiO | el 0 T

January 24, 2011



MORGAN COUNTY

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
300 WEST STATE STREET

JACKSONVILLE, 11. 62650
Phone: 217-245-4619 Fax: 217-245-8820  Email: commish@morgancounty-il.com

MORGAN COUNTY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This section of the Morgan County audit for the fiscal year ending August
31,2010 1s intended to provide discussion and analysis from the Morgan
County Board of Commissioners’ perspective. It is an opportunity to
communicate our rationale for the administration of the County’s resources.
For your {full understanding of Morgan County’s financial position, we ask
that you read this section in conjunction with the financial statements.

Financial Highlights

. Total government assets exceeded liabilities by $22,844,809, a
decrease of $788,555 from 2009. Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation were $11,323,082 up from $10,956,961 last year.
Unrestricted net assets were $4,487,113, an increase of $272,117 from
the 2009 level of $4,214,996. In general, the asset position of the
County is 6.5% improved over 2009, as capital outlay exceeded
depreciation by $366,121 in 2010. Capital asset expenditure was
significantly increased from $1,338,796 in 2009 to $2,073,131 in
2010. This figure includes most of the courthouse, phase 1
renovation costs of $1,067,000 incurred in 2010.

® Total Fund Balance for government funds was $11,710,226, down
from $12,929,273 in 2009. The General Fund Balance was
$4,675,612, up $207,746 from the 2009 level of $4,467,866. The
fund balance represents reserves for cash flow, emergencies, and
carry-over funds. Many of the fund balances are restricted for specific
purposes by statute or administrative rule. The General Fund Balance
also funds the Capital Improvement Fund.

o The County’s General Fund had operating revenue of $6,389,352, a
decrease of $112,623 or 1.7 % from $6,501,975 in 2009. Operating
expenses for 2010 of $5,763,683 represent a decrease of $413,968 or
6.7% under 2009’s expenditure rate of $6,177,651. The net positive
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change in the General Fund Balance was $207,746. County officials
worked hard to reduce expenditures in 2010 and some voluntary
attrition of personnel through retirement and resignations were not
replenished.

The total operating revenue of all County governmental funds was
$15,817,240, a decrease of $226,701 from last year. Total operating
expenses were increased by 9.3 % to $17,036,287 from $15,588,236
in 2009. The result is a decrease of $1,219,047 in the combined fund
balance of all County governmental funds, of which the majority of
expense was the anticipated phase one courthouse restoration of
$1,067,000.

The major revenue for the County was intergovernmental, which
includes sales and income taxes, Motor Fuel Tax, and grants from
state and federal sources. Intergovernmental Revenue was
$7,466,521, down from $7,535,720 last year. Intergovernmental
Revenue is 47% of the total operating revenue for 2010. It is
anticipated that deficit reduction at the federal and state levels may
significantly reduce funding for county government in 2011.

Local taxes, property tax and 911 surcharge fees for all taxing bodies
in Morgan County brought in $5,175,811, up 1.5% from last year’s
$5,099,364. This rate of increase is affected by the Property Tax
Extension Limitation law and the rate of new property assessment.
New property investment, as captured for taxation purposes is
anticipated to be down again in 2011 by approximately 25%.

Utilization revenue from various fines, fees, and permits totaled
$2,295,622 down 11.6% from last year’s $2,596,339. The recession is
reflected here as in the inability to pay fines and reduced fee activity
related to property sales.

Morgan County has no bonded indebtedness against a statutory debt
limitation of $28,041,103. The statutory debt limitation represents

5.75% of the County’s Equalized Assessed Valuation in 2009 of
$487,671,360.

The 2009 (payable in 2010) Equalized Assessed Valuation increased
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to $487,671,360 or 3.4% from $471,855,005 in 2008. It is anticipated
that the 2010 and 2011 EAV will reflect the reduced values of
commercial and residential real property.

Introduction to Morgan County’s Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the County’s basic
financial statements. There are three parts to the basic financial statements:
the government-wide financial statements, the fund financial statements, and
the notes to the financial statements. This report also includes other
supplementary and statistical information.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. This report contains two
government-wide financial statements designed to provide both long-term
and short-term information about the County’s over-all status. Financial
reporting at this level imposes a private sector perspective, with its basis in
full-accrual accounting and elimination or reclassification of internal
activities. All current year revenue and expenses are included, regardless of
when cash is received or paid.

The government-wide financial statements consist of the Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities, designed to provide information on
the County as a whole. The Statement of Net Assets reports the assets and
liabilities of the County with the difference reported as net assets. This
statement combines and consolidates governmental funds’ current assets
with capital assets and long-term obligations, using the accrual basis of
accounting and focuses on measurement of economic resources. The
Statement of Activities is focused on both the gross and net cost of various
activities that are supported by the government’s general taxes and other
resources. An important purpose of the Statement of Activities is to show
the financial reliance of the County’s different activities on revenues
provided by local taxpayers,

Morgan County closed the only enterprise fund or business-type activity it
operated in 2009. This fund, the Internal Service Fund, was established for a
self-insured health coverage plan for County employees. Employees are
now covered by the Illinois Local Government Health Plan. The County
does not supply water, sewer, other public utilities, or operate any facilities
other than for governmental purposes. These are classified as general
government, law and judicial, health and human services, and transportation.
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Property taxes, fees and fines, service charges, and state and federal revenue
sharing, grants, interest income, and donations support these activities.

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide
reporting in more detail. A fund is an accounting method of segregating
resources that are designated for a specific purpose.

Governmental funds are reported in the fund financial statements and
essentially account for the same functions reported as “governmental
activities” in the government-wide financial statements. The fund financial
statements, however, focus on the near-term inflows and outflows of
expendable resources, as well as on balances of expendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in the
annual budgeting process and the near-term allocation of resources.

Comparison of the narrow focus of the fund financial statements with the
broader focus of the government-wide statements is useful to obtain a better
understanding of the relationship between immediate budget considerations
and the long-term financial health of the County government. The mandated
format of this County audit requires an identification of “major funds”. The
General Fund is always a “major fund”. Other funds are identified as “major
funds” based on the percentage threshold of the individual fund in
comparison to the total of all funds in the categories of assets, liabilities,
revenues, and expenditures. Fund financial statements will be presented in
separate and combined formats for comparison purposes for these “major
funds.” The usefulness of this comparison of major funds will vary from
year-to-year, as numerous and often arbitrary factors affect the list of “major

funds.”

In 2010 the “major funds” in addition to the General Fund are: the Motor
Fuel Tax Fund and the LIHEAP Fund.

Notes to Financial Statements. The accompanying notes to the financial
statements provide information essential to the full understanding of the
government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and notes,
this report also presents required supplementary information, concerning the
County’s pension obligations, and basic financial statements of non-major
funds.
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Morgan County Financial Analysis

Fiscal year 2010 was a positive financijal year for Morgan County. Despite
the cash flow issues with the state of Illinois, and the general poor economic
climate, Morgan County fared better than most counties in our area. At this
Juncture the county has not imposed mandatory layoffs nor withheld
customary services. However, for the first time in many years the
Commissioners approved a deficit budget for 2011. Some employee
positions, lost through attrition, have not been replaced. In total,
departments within the General Fund were able to reduce expenditures by
$413,968 under last year’s expenditures. Revenues are expected to continue
to decline in the near term as our tax base erodes and as federal and state
sources are undermined by growing deficits.

In addition to this audit document, we also encourage you to review reports
of previous years, and the annual budget resolution, annual budget, and
annual levy ordinance to assist your own analysis.

Net Assets. Net assets decreased to $22,844,809 from $23,633,364 in the
2009 fiscal year. Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, were up
to $11,323,082 from $10,956,961, as capital investment, primarily the
courthouse renovation, exceeded depreciation. However, deferred revenue
from the State of Illinois of $363,428 negatively affected this year’s total net
assets.

We caution the comparison of the assets of local government to that of a

private enterprise, as a large portion of the County’s assets have little to no
liquidity.
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
ALLGOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES - REVENUE
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Government Revenues. Property tax in 2010 is 30.6% of total revenue,
up from 29.3% in 2009. Morgan County’s Equalized Assessed Valuation
(EAV), the value basis for property tax, grew from $471,855,005 in 2008 to
$487,671,360 in 2009 (payable in 2010), a 3.4% increase. In general itis a
positive economic indicator for the County when the EAV growth exceeds
the inflation rate, as was the case in 2010. As mentioned earlier, this is not
expected to hold in 201 1.

Soft revenues directly related to our economy, such as income tax, and
replacement tax did not perform as well as last year. Revenue from Services
was slightly up as all other major categories were down. General Fund
Revenue was down in 2010 to $6,389,352 from $6,501,975 in 2009.
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Government Expenditures

MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
ALLGOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES - EXPENDITURES

Highway
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Morgan County had a total of $17,036,287 in expenditures in 2010, up from
the 2009 level of $15,588,236. Capital Outlay expenditures were 12.2% of
Total Expenditures at $2,073,131 and again, were impacted by the
courthouse renovation. The General Fund expenditures were $5,763,683
down a considerable 6.7% under last year. It is important to view capital
expenditures over the long term average. In Morgan County capital
expenditures usually occur when state and federal match funding is available
and/or when we are able to accumulate funds over a period of time, as was
done for the courthouse renovation.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

At the end of fiscal year 2010 the County had Net Assets of $22,844,809
down from $23,633,364 last year. Capital Assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, totaled $11,323,082 up from $10,956,961. Investment in
capital assets was up in 2010 primarily due to the courthouse renovation. It
is important to understand the context and accounting policy definition of
Capital Assets. Please read the Capital Assets section of the Notes to the
Financial Statements, as provided by the auditor.

The board has established a Capital Improvement Fund as a means to
accumulate funds for improvements, repair, and maintenance of the
County’s properties. The board does not anticipate a need for the issuance
of bonds at this time.

Morgan County has no long term debt and has a statutory debt limitation of
$28,041,103. While having no long term debt is considered by most to be a
good thing, it also means that the County is financing long term assets, such
as the courthouse restoration, with current revenue, thus placing a burden on
current revenues, Remaining debt-free may have also contributed to the
under-allocation of resources to capital assets in previous years.

Major Funds Budgetary Highlights

The “Major Funds” for 2010 are the General Fund, Motor Fuel Tax Fund,
and the LIHEAP Fund. Major funds are determined by the fund’s
relationship to the County totals. A fund must meet or exceed 10% of the
total threshold requirement in Assets, Liabilities, Revenues, or Expenditures
this year to be a Major Fund.

General Fund. The General Fund is the corporate operating fund of the
County and is statutorily and programmatically the least restricted fund. As
such, it is the major focus of the administration.

Revenues came in less than budgeted at $6,389,352 and less than last year’s
$6,501,975. We attribute the downturn to the general state of the economy.
Expenditures decreased by $413,968 or 6.7% thanks to all departments

employing cost containment strategies, including attrition of personnel. As
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a result, the ending fund balance for the General Fund was increased by
$207,746 to $4,675,612,

The board’s conservative philosophy toward the budget process anticipated
the recessionary impacts on the General Fund in 2010. Further negative
impacts are likely in 2011 and may require difficult downsizing measures.

Motor Fuel Tax Fund. The Motor Fuel Tax Fund exceeds 10% of the
County’s total assets and labilities.

LIHEAP Fund. The Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program is
funded from federal and state grants. The fund exceeds 10% of the
County’s revenue and expenditures.

Economic Factors and Future Trends

® As aresult of the Property Tax Extension Limitation Act (PTEL),
Morgan County is limited to property tax increases of 5% or the
Consumer Price Index (CPI) rate of increase, whichever is lower.
The 2010 PTEL extension limit is to be 2.7%. Beyond new property
assessments, this will allow little growth in property taxes for 2010
payable in 2011. New property assessments are projected to be down
considerably, while commercial, industrial, and residential properties
are losing value. These factors, combined with the recessionary
trends in our softer revenues, suggest there are significant financial
concern for the County in fiscal year 2011 and future years.

° The softer revenues did not perform as well in 2010, and are down
thus far in 2011. Additionally, revenues from the state have been
delayed significantly, due to the well publicized insolvency issues.
The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act increases that
temporarily boosted our Intergovernmental Revenues are almost
depleted. As both the federal and state focus on deficit reduction, we
project further erosion in the revenues from sales, income, and even
property taxes for 2010.

e State and federal resources to Morgan County continue to be a
concern. As of this writing, most financial analysts are indicating that
significant recovery from the recession is unlikely near term and full
recovery may take years. Locally, the recent loss of manufacturing,

2i



state, and construction jobs is predicted to hit our regional economy
harder than in previous national recessions.

Health care reform is currently on the national agenda. The existing
health insurance system for County employees is not sustainable over
the long term as health insurance benefit costs far exceed the rate of
inflation year after year. However, there are concerns that the new
health care reform system may have negative impacts, as well.
Currently, employees do not share in the premium costs of our health
care system. The board will be looking at a reasonable employee cost
sharing agreement for fiscal year 2011 and beyond.

The Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) administers the
Morgan County employee retirement plan. Morgan County is
expected to fund an ever increasing share of this employee benefit in
2011.

The assessed valuation, the basis for property taxation for the County,
is a concern moving forward. Morgan County has lost much of its
manufacturing base and these facilities represent significant
investment. The erosion of the tax base is further fueled by the lack
of new residential construction and devaluation of current housing
stock.

FutureGen 2.0. The U.S. Department of Energy has announced a
$1.3 Billion investment in clean coal technology. The Meredosia
Ameren Plant would be improved to produce electricity with near zero
CO2 emissions. The CO2 would be stored underground and a
learning center would be constructed. Morgan County has a potential
site for the storage and is currently under consideration. Construction
is scheduled to begin in 2012 with production scheduled in 2015.
Should this development occur, the financial impact to Morgan
County would be substantial.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to give the general public an overview of
Morgan County’s finances and demonstrate the County’s commitment to
meeting higher standards of accountability. If you have any questions
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regarding this report or wish to request additional information please contact
the Morgan County Board of Commissioners, 300 West State, Jacksonville,
Mlinois 626590.

@MM,/Q b

Bradley %Iler irman

/6&4 DN,

Bill Meier, Member C
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Assets

August 31, 2010

ASSETS
Cash
Taxes receivable, net of allowance
for uncollectibles
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
for uncollectibles
Due from governmental agencies
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deferred Revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Investments in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted for;
Special revenues
Unrestricted

Total net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements
3

Governmental
Activities

$ 8,906,319
2,476,351
676,704

371,621
11,323,082

23,754,077

357,341
363,428

188,499

909,268

11,323,082

7,034,614
4,487,113

$ 22,844,809







Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities:
General Government
L.aw and Judicial
Health and Human Services
Transportation

Total Governmental Activities

MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Statement of Activities

Year Ended August 31, 2010

Charges for

Operating
Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions
$ 3,413,867 $ 735,723 309,385
4,626,898 1,307,573 207,614
5,626,464 246,294 4,117,370
2,938,566 210,765 754,931
$ 16,605,795 § 2,500,355 5,389,300

General Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental

Sales Tax
Inheritance Tax
Replacement Tax
Income Tax
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets-Beginning

Net Assets-Ending



Capital

Grants and Governments!
Contributions Activities
$ (2,368,759

)
(3,111,711)
(1,262,800)

15,032 (1,957,838)

15,032 (8,701,108)

5,175,811

1,028,044
125
458,503
623,497
143,306
483,267

7,912,553

(788,555)

23,633,364

$  22,844.809

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

August 31, 2010

Motor
General Fuel Tax LIMEAP
Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash 3,199,376 1,304,091 32,658
Property Taxes Receivable 1,215,400
Intergovernmental Receivables:
Federal Grants
State Grants 6,672
Motor Fuel Tax 41,867
Other Receivables 373,743 32,433
Due from Other Funds 104,021
Total Assets 4,892,540 1,378,391 39,330
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Accounts Payable 100,316 48,075
Deferred Revenue 301,625 7,202
Due to Other Funds 116,612 8,648
Total Liabilities 216,928 348,700 15,851
Fund Balance
Reserved for Document Reacquisition 35,417
Reserved for Courts 107,578
Unreserved, Reported In:
General Fund 4,532,617
Special Revenue Funds 1,028,691 23,47S

Total Liabilities and
Fund Batance $ 4892540 §% 1,378,391 % 39,330




Other Total
Governmental  Governmental
Funds Funds

$ 4,370,184 § 8,906,319

1,260,951 2,476,357
266,368 266,368
56,714 63,386
41,867

270,528 676,704
196,744 300,765

$ 6421499 § 12,731,760

$ 208,950 § 357,341

54,601 363,428
175,504 300,765
439,055 1,021,534

35,417

107,578

4,532,617

5,982,444 7,034,614

$ 6421498 § 12,731,760

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2010

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 11,710,226

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 11,323,082

L.ong-term liabilities and compensated absences are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. (188,499)

Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 22,844,809

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Year Ended August 31, 2010

Motor
General Fuel Tax LIHEAP
Fund Fund Fund
REVENUE
Taxes 2,258,094
intergovernmental 2,372,237 754 931 1,592,365
| icenses and Permits 380,274
Fines and Forfeits 518,322
Revenue from Services 267,250
Interest 109,808 1,788 124
Miscelianeous 483,267 99,740
Total Revenue 6,389,352 756,719 1,692,229
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 2,556,020
Law and Judicial 3,129,214
Health and Human Services 1,681,160
Transportation 688,052
Capitai Qutlay 78,449 182,844
Total Expenditures 5,763,683 870,896 1,681,160
Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 625,669 (114,177) 11,069
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund Transfers (417,923)
Net change in fund balances 207,746 (114 177) 11,069
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 4 467,866 1,142,868 12,410
FUND BALANCE, ENDING 4,675,612 1,028,691 23,479




Cther Total

Governmental  Governmental
Funds Funds
2,917,717 § 5,175,811
2,746,988 7,466,521

670 380,944
400,489 918,791
728,837 995,887

31,486 143,306
152,873 735,880
5,878,540 15,817,240
781,247 3,337,267
1,426,231 4 555 445
3,726,934 5,408,094
974,298 1,662,350
1,811,838 2,073,131
8,720,548 17,036,287
(1,741,608) (1,218,047
417.923 0
(1,323,685) (1,219,047)
7,306,129 12,929.273
5,882444 5 11,710,226

See accompanying notes to financial staiements
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended August 31, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ {(1,219,047)

Governmental Funds do not report Accrued Vacation as an expenditure. However, in the
Statement of Activities, those costs are shown. This represents the net change in
accrued vacation, 64,371

Governmental Funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeds
depreciation in the current period. 366,121

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ (788,555)

See accompanying notes {o financial statements
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

August 31, 2010

ASSETS

Cash $
Intergovernmental
Receivables:
Motor Fuel Tax

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Intergovernmental
Payables:
Accounts Payable
Funds Available
for Distribution

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS $

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Total

11,386,887

77,814

11,464,701

141,664

11,323,037

11,464,701

0







MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of Morgan County, lllinois (County) are based upon
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as
applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the significant
policies.

The financial statements of the County have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principtes generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to
governmental units (hereinafter referred to as GAAP),

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principies.

The more significant of the County’s accounting policies are described below.
A.  Financial Reporting Entity

Margan County is a municipal corporation governed by an elected 3 member board.
These financial statements present Morgan County, the primary government unit.

County officials are responsibie for appointing the members of the board of other
organizations, but the County’s accountability for these organizations do not extend
beyond making the appointments. The County Board appoints the board members of
the following organizations:

Drainage Districts

Fire Protection Districts
Cemeteries

Housing Authority
Airport Authorities
Water Districts

Mass Transit Districts

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
County. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from
these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit
from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Financial statements are provided for governmental funds. Major individual
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

C. Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting

The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted
for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities,
fund balance, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are
summarized by type in the combined financial statements.

Funds are classified into the following categories: governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is
used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for
in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds — Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the

proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts) requiring
separate accounting because of legal, requlatory provisions or administrative action.
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting (Continued)
AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds are used o account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity
or as an agent for individuals, privale organizations, other governmental units and/or
other funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not
involve measurement of results of operations.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund
and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 90
days of the end of the current fiscal pericd. Expenditures generally are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, licenses, charges for services and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered fo be susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Property taxes are considered
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. All
other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the County.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial

resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
{(Continued)

The Motor Fuel Tax Fund accounts for State motor fuel tax receipts and the related
expenditures for the maintenance and construction of County roads.

The LIMEAP Fund accounts for State and Federal grants used to assist low-income
families with their utility bills.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
for goods, services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and
3) capital grants and contributions. All taxes are reported as general revenues.

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the County considers all highly liquid
investments cash equivalents. Cash and Cash Equivalents represent cash on hand,
cash deposited in checking accounts, certificates of deposits, repurchase agreements
and U.S. treasury bills and notes which are stated at cost (which approximates fair
value).

F. Receivables
GASB Statements No. 33 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Transactions requires the recognition of receivables associated with nonexchange

tfransactions as follows:

o Derived tax receivables (such as: sales, income and motor fuel taxes) are
recognized when the underlying exchange has occurred.

e Imposed nonexchange receivables (such as: property taxes and fines) are
recognized when an enforceable legal claim has arisen.

Government — mandates or voluntary non-exchange transaction receivables (such as:
mandates or grants) are recognized when all eligibility requirements have been met.

13



MORGAN COUNTY, [LLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
G. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment and infrastructure assets
(e.g. roads, bridges, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at
the date of the donation.

Governmental activities capital assets having a useful life greater than one year are
capitalized using the following dollar thresholds: $50,000 for land, $100,000 for
buildings and improvements, $25,000 for equipment, $15,000 for vehicles, and
$200,000 for roads and bridges.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend the assets’ lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital
assets and improvements are capitalized as proiects are constructed.

The County uses the direct method for accounting for planned major maintenance.
Amounts are expensed or capitalized as incurred.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Description Years
Building and Improvements 30 -40
Equipment 4-10
Vehicles 4-10
Road and Bridges 20

H. Compensated Absences

Accrued sick leave has not been recorded; the County is not liable in the amount to
the employees upon retirement or discontinued service so the amount is
undetermined.

Accrued vacation leave which the employees have elected to accumulate in their
bank amounted to $188,499 for the Governmental Funds and has been recorded in
the Statement of Net Assets as noncurrent liabilities due in more than one vyear.

Employees are allowed to accumulate up to 320 hours of vacation time.
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
I.  Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund
balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by
outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent
tentative management plans that are subject to change.

J.  Property Tax Revenue

Property tax revenue line items include adjustments of prior year's tax revenue from
tax sales, the adjustment for the allowance for uncollectible taxes and tax increment
financing (TIF) distributions. These line items are not reported separately because
the amounts are immaterial.

K. [nterfund Transactions

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or
expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for
expenditures/expenses intially made from it that are properly applicable to another
fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All  other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and
reimbursements, are reported as operating transfers. Nonrecurring or non-routine
permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfer.

.. Use of Estimates

In preparing financial statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

MORGAN COUNTY, [LLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

LEGAL COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Budgets

The County follows the procedures indicated below in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the combined financial statements:

(a) At a regular or specially called meeting of the County Board in early August, the
County Board submits a proposed budget for the fiscal year commencing on the
following September.

1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them.

(b) The budget is available for public inspection for at least 15 days prior to passage
by the County Board.

(c) Prior to September, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an
appropriation ordinance. The original budget was approved on August 31,
2009.

(d) The level of budgetary control, on which expenditures may not legaily exceed
appropriations, is at the fund level in accordance with lllinois Compiled Stafutes.
Any transfers between funds require County board approval. The budget was
last amended September 13, 2010. Adjustments made during the year are
reflected in the required supplementary information.

(e} Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device
during the year for the general and special revenue funds through an internal
reporting basis. Unexpended appropriations and encumbrances lapse at
August 31.

(f) Budgets for the general and special revenue funds are legally adopted and are
on a basis consistent with GAAP.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The County is allowed to invest in securities as authorized by Sections 2 and 6 of the
Public Funds Investment Act of lllinois.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
County’s deposits may not be returned or the County will not be able to recover
collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. The County's policy
requires deposits to be secured by collateral valued at market or par, whichever is
lower, less the amount of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance
(FDIC). Deposited funds may be invested in certificates of deposit. Collateral
agreements must be approved prior to deposit of funds. The County Board designates
a list of authorized depository institutions.
16



NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

NOTE 5.

MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Deposits of the County’s reporting entity are insured or collateralized with securities
held by the County, its agent, or by the pledging financial institution’s trust department
or agent in the name of the County.

On August 31, 2010, $3,706,452 of the County’s deposits was covered by Federal
Deposit Insurance, $16,423,949 was covered by specific collateral, and $684,040 was
not covered by Federal Deposit Insurance or collateralized and is subject to the credit
risk of the banks.

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are collected by the County on behalf of all taxing bodies.
Distributions are made to all taxing bodies, including the County, at least once every
30 days. Distributions are made more often during the two main collection periods.

The 2009 property tax levy is recorded as revenues in fiscal year 2010, net of
estimated loss on collections. The County’'s policy complies with the GASB policy,
which requires property tax revenue to actually be collected within 60 days of the
entity’s year-end in order to be recorded as revenues within that year.

The property tax calendar for Morgan County, llinois is as follows:

Lien Date January 1, 2010
Levy Date December 28, 2009
First Installment (one-half of the total bill) Due July 2, 2010
Second Instaliment (balance of the fotal bill) Due September 3, 2010
Tax Sale of Delinquent Accounts is Usually Held in November 10, 2010

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

Receivables in the general fund are intergovernmental and other receivables.
Receivables in the Motor Fuel Tax Fund are intergovernmental and other receivables.
Receivables in the LIHEAP Fund are intergovernmental receivabies. The other
governmental funds receivables are intergovernmental receivables and other
receivables.
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NOTE 6.

NOTE 7.

MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

CONTINGENCIES

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable
funds. The amount, if any, of the expenditures which may be disallowed by the
grantor cannot be determined at this time although the County expects such amounts,
if any, to be immaterial.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The County funds all amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, at the
direction of the covered employee, through investments in fixed and variable rate
annuity contracts underwritten by National Association of Counties Deferred
Compensation Program.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights
purchased with those amounts, and ail income attributable to those amounts,
property, or rights are (until paid or made available fo the employee or other
beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the County subject only to the claims of
the County's general creditors. Participants' rights under the plan are equal to those of
general creditors of the County in an amount equal to the fair market value of the
deferred account for each participant.

The County has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due
care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The County believes that
it is unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the
future.

The investment activity for the year ended August 31, 2010 is as

follows:

Beginning Investment Balance $| 476,167
Contributions 56,497
Investment Income/(Loss) 24,002
Withdrawals (12,835)
Transfers Out (517}
Asset Fees (582)
Life insurance (Posted Only) {612)
Ending Investment Balance $| 542120
Life Insurance Policy Holder Account Value $ 6,736
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

NOTE 8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

The County has three defined benefit pension plans with Illinois Municipal Retirement
Fund (IMRF), which provides retirement, disability, annual cost of living adjustments
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The plans are for sheriff's law
enforcement personnel (SLEP), Elected County Officials (ECO) and for County
employees other than SLEP. The plan, available to all County employees, permits
them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is
not available to employees untit termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
emergency.

A. Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP)

Plan Description: The employer's defined benefit pension plan for Sheriff's Law
Enforcement Personnel employees provides retirement and disability benefits, post
retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The
plan is affiliated with the Illincis Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-
employer plan. Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be
changed by the General Assembly of the State of lllinois. IMRF issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained on-line at www.imrf.org.

Funding Policy: As set by statute, the Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel plan
members are required to contribute 7.50 percent of their annual covered salary. The
statutes require employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member
contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer
contribution rate for calendar year 2009 was 16.78 percent of annual covered payroll.
The County also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental
retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for
disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the
supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Annual Pension Cost: For fiscal year ending August 31, 2010, the EMPLOYER'S
annual pension cost of $273,251 for the Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel plan
was equal to the EMPLOYER'S required and actual contributions.

Three-Year Trend Information for the Sheriff’'s Law Enforcement Personnel Plan

Fiscal Percentage of

Year Annual Pension APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
8/31/10 273,251 100% $0
8/31/09 237,536 100% 0
8/31/08 233,485 100% 0
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

NOTE 8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)
A. Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) (Continued)

The required contribution rate for 2009 was determined as part of the December 31,
2007, actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The
actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2007, included (a) 7.5 percent investment rate
of return (net of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary
increases of 4.00% a year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary
increases ranging from 0.4% to 10% per year depending on age of service,
attributable to seniority/merit, and {(d) post retirement benefit increases of 3%
annually. The actuarial value of the Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel plan assets
was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the
market value of investments over a five-year period with a 15% corridor between the
actuarial and market value of assets. The Sheriffs Law Enforcement Personnel
plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of
projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December
31, 2007, was 23 years.

Funded Status and Funding Progress: As of December 31, 2009, the most recent
actuatial valuation date, the Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel plan was 62.64
percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $5,576,732 and the
actuarial value of assets was $3,493,338, resulting in an underfunded actuarial
accrued liability (UAAL) of $2,083,394. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
employees covered by the plan) was $1,408,331 and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 148 percent. In conjunction with the December 2009 actuarial
valuation the market value of investments was determined using techniques that
spread the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-
year period with a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. In
2010, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized on a level percentage
of projected payroll on an open 30 year basis.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RS| following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.

B. Elected County Official (ECO)

Plan Description: The employer's defined benefit pension plan for Elected County
Official employees provides retirement and disability benefits, post retirement
increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The plan is
affiliated with the lHlinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-
employer plan. Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be
changed by the General Assembly of the State of lllinois. IMRF issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained on-line at www.imrf.org.
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

NOTE 8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)
B. Elected County Official (ECO) (Continued)

Funding Policy: As set by statute, the Elected County Official plan members are
required to contribute 7.50 percent of their annual covered salary. The statutes
require employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member
contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer
contribution rate for calendar year 2009 was 31.60 percent of annual covered payroll.
The County aiso contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental
retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for
disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the
supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Annual Pension Cost: For fiscal year ending August 31, 2010, the EMPLOYER'S
annual pension cost of $141,300 for the Elected County Official plan was equal to the
EMPLOYER'S required and actual contributions.

Three-Year Trend Information for the Elected County Officials Plan

Fiscal Percentage of

Year Annual Pension APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
8/31/10 141,300 100% $0
8/31/09 145,270 100% 0
8/31/08 134,348 100% 0

The required contribution rate for 2009 was determined as part of the December 31,
2007, actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The
actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2007, included (a) 7.5 percent investment rate
of return {net of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary
increases of 4.00% a year, aftributable to inflation, {c) additional projected salary
increases ranging from 0.4% to 10% per year depending on age and service,
attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post retirement benefit increases of 3%
annually. The actuarial value of the Elected County Official plan assets was
determined using technigues that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the
market value of investments over a five-year period with a 15% corridor between the
actuarial and market value of assets. The Elected County Official plan’s unfunded
actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll
on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2007, was 23
years.

Funded Status and Funding Progress: As of December 31, 2009, the most recent
actuarial valuation date, the Elected County Official plan was 56.50 percent funded.
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $2,632,577 and the actuarial value of
assets was $1,487,512, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
of $1,145,065.
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

NOTE 8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)
B. Elected County Official (ECO) (Continued)

The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$475,206 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 241 percent. [n
conjunction with the December 2009 actuarial valuation the market value of
investments was determined using techniques that spread the effect of short-term
volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period with a 20% corridor
between the actuarial and market value of assets. In 2010, the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized on a level percentage of projected payroll on an
open 30 year basis.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multivear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.

C. County Employees Other Than SLEP and ECO (IMRF)

Plan Description: The employer's defined benefit pension plan for Regular
employees provides retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and
death benefits 1o plan members and beneficiaries. The plan is affiliated with the
linois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit
provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the General
Assembly of the State of lllinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required suppiementary information. That report
may be obtained on-line at www.imif.org.

Funding Policy: As set by statute, the Regular plan members are required fo
confribute 4.50 percent of their annual covered salary. The statutes require
employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to
finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer contribution rate
for calendar year 2009 was 8.36 percent of annual covered payroll. The County also
contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits,
all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death
benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement
benefits rate is set by statute.

Annual Pension Cost: For fiscal year ending August 31, 2010, the EMPLOYER'S

annual pension cost of $429,806 for the Regular plan was equal to the EMPLOYER'S
required and actual contributions.
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

NOTE 8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

C. County Employees Other Than SLEP and ECO (IMRF) (Continued)

Three-Year Trend Information for the Regular Plan

Fiscal Percentage of

Year Annual Pension APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
8/31/10 429,806 100% $0
8/31/09 320,313 100% 0
8/31/08 307,058 100% 0

The required contribution rate for 2009 was determined as part of the December 31,
2007, actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The
actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2007, included (a) 7.5 percent investment rate
of return (net of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary
increases of 4.00% a vyear, attributable to inflation, (¢) additional projected salary
increases ranging from 04% to 10% per year depending on age and service,
attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post retirement benefit increases of 3%
annually. The actuarial value of the Regular plan assets was determined using
techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments over a five-year period with a 15% corridor between the actuarial and
market value of assets. The Regular plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is
being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The
remaining amortization period at December 31, 2007, was 23 years.

Funded Status and Funding Progress: As of December 31, 2009, the most recent
actuarial valuation date, the Regular plan was 77.41 percent funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $13,697,122 and the actuarial value of assets was
$10,603,471, resuiting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$3,093,651. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the
plan) was $3,931,224 and the ratic of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 79
percent. In conjunction with the December 2009 actuarial valuation the market value
of investments was determined using techniques that spread the effect of short-term
volatility in the market vaiue of investments over a five-year period with a 20% corridor
between the actuarial and market value of assets. In 2010, the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized on a level percentage of projected payroll on an
open 30 year basis.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multivear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over fime relative io the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.
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NOTE 9.

NOTE 10.

NOTE 11.

NOTE 12.

MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

The County is @ member of four jointly governed organizations in which the County is
one of the members: lllincis County Solid Waste Management Association, Mid-
America Intermodal Authority Port District; fllinois Valley Resource, Conservation,
Development District and lllinois Public Health Mutual Aid System.

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued Vacation
Employees can accumulate up to 320 hours of vacation time. The liability is

calculated on the employee’s current hourly rate times the accumulated hours. The
net change in total liability for the year ended August 31, 2010 is as follows:

Net
Balance August 31, Increase/ Balance August 31,
2009 (Decrease) 2010
$ 252,870 ($64,371) $ 188,499

RESERVED FUND BALANCE

The General Fund reports a portion of fund balance as reserved. These reserves are
due to the collection of fines and fees that are to be used for specific purposes within
the court system as well as the collection of restitution for the theft of historical
documents. A summary of the net change in the General Fund reserved fund balance
Is as follows:

Balance Net Increase Balance

Reserved For 8/31/09 (Decrease) 8/31/10
Courts $ 113,122 ($ 5,544) $ 107,578
Document Reacquisition 35,417 0 35,417
TOTAL $ 148,539 ($ 5,544) $ 142 995

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

As of August 31, 2010, the County has multiple construction projects in progress. The
majority of the County’s construction in progress consists of highway construction
projects. These projects are expected to be completed at various different times and
for varying amounts.

Construction in progress alsc includes costs incurred on the renovation of the

courthouse. This project is expected to span multiple fiscal years. As of 8/31/10, a
total of $1,317,793 has been spent on the project.

24



MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOCIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010
NOTE 13 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended August 31, 2010 was as follows:

Transfer of

Beginning Construction Ending
Balance Increases In Progress Decreases Balance
8/31/09 08/31/10
Capital assets not being depreciated
Construction in progress $ 1134116 $ 1179815 % {758,054) $ 0 % 1,555,877
Capital assets being depreciated
Road and bridges 16,272,666 758,054 17,030,720
Building and improvements 2,491,000 2,491,000
Equipment 1,466,927 1,466,927
Vehicles 922,015 158,516 191,778 888,753
Total capital asseis baing
depreciated 21,152,608 158,516 758,054 191,778 21,877,400
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Road and bridges 8,243,118 713,010 8,956,128
Buildings and improvements 1,632,017 54,775 1,686,792
Equipment 710,783 123,080 833,863
Vehicles 743,845 81,345 191,778 633,412
Total accumulated
depreciation 11,329,763 3 972,210 % 0% 191,778 12,110,195
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 9,822,845 9,767,205
Governmental activities
capital assets, net $ 10,956,961 $ 11,323,082

Depreciation Expense

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the County as follows:
Governmental activities

General Government g 41,573
L.aw and Judicial 116,085
Health and Human Services 54,500
Transportation 750,052

Total depreciation expense - gavernmental aclivities $ 972210
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010
NOTE 14 - INTERFUND BALANCES

Interfund balances among funds reported within the same activities column are eliminated
from that column in the governmeni-wide statement of activities.

At August 31, 2010, interfund receivables and payabies consisted of the following:

Funds Due From Due to
Other Funds QOther Funds
General
Nonmajor Governmental 5 104,021 $ 116,612
Total General 104,021 116,612
LIHEAP
Nonmajor Governmental 8,649
Total LIHEAP 0 8,649
Nonmajor Governmental
General 116,612 104,021
Nonmajor Governmental 80,132 71,483
Total Nonmajor Governmental 106,744 175,504
Total Interfund - Ail Funds b 300,765 $ 300,765

NOTE 15 - OPERATING TRANSFERS

Operating transfers among funds reported within the same activities column are
eliminated from that coiumn in the government-wide statement of activities.

The following operating transfers were made:

Operating Operating
TransferIn Transfer Out
General Fund
Nonmajor Governmental 3 11,738 $ 429,661
Total General Fund 11,738 429,661
Nonmajor Governmental
General 429,661 11,738
Total Nonmajor Governmental 429,661 11,738
Total Interfunds - All Funds $ 441,399 $ 441,359
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TGO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31, 2010

NOTE 16 - LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

Equalized Assessed Valuation, 2008 Tax Year $ 487,671,360

Statutory Debt Limitation S 28,041,103
{5.75% of Equaliized Assessed Valuation)

Less: Bond Indebtedness 0

Legal Debt Margin $ 28,041,103

NOTE 17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent evenis were evalulated through the financial statement release date of
January 24, 2011.
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Year Ended August 31, 2010

Variance With

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
REVENUE
Property Taxes $ 2,420,000 $§ 2,420,000 $ 2,258,094 $ {161,9086)
Intergovernmental:
Sales Tax 650,000 950,000 1,028,044 78,044
Income Tax 550,000 550,000 623,497 73,497
Replacement Tax 452,667 452,667 390,186 (62,481)
inheritance Tax 30,000 30,000 125 (29,875)
State Other 335,770 335,770 304,356 (31,414)
Federal 15,000 15,000 26,029 11,029
Licenses and Permits 450,000 450,000 380,274 (69,726
Fines and Forfeits 545,000 545,000 518,322 (26,678)
Revenue from Services 205,350 205,350 267,250 61,900
Interest 100,000 100,000 109,908 9,908
Miscellaneous 351,000 351,000 483,267 132,267
Total Revenue 6,404,787 6,404,787 6,389,352 {15,435)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 2,785,013 2,823,613 2,558,020 267,593
Law and Judicial 3,216,178 3,290,133 3,129,214 160,919
Capital Outlay 432,028 432,028 78,449 353,579
Total Expenditures 6,433,219 6,545,774 5,763,683 782,091
Revenues Over {(Under) Expenditures (28,432) (140,987) 625,669 766,656
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund Transfers (423,729) (423,729) (417,923) 5,806
Net change ir fund balances S (452,161} % (564,716) 207,746 3 772,462
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 4,467,866
FUND BALANCE, ENDING 5 4675612
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

Year Ended August 31, 2010

Variance With
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
EXPENDITURES
Current;
General Government
Commissioners' Office
Commissioners’ Salaries $ 89,900 § 99,900 $ 89,900 % 0
Other Salaries 62,755 62,755 62,755 0
Services 8,000 8,000 4,385 3,615
Materials 2,000 2,000 786 1,214
Total Commissioners' Office 172,655 172,655 167,826 4,829
Treasurer's Office
County Treasurer's Salary 55,500 55,500 55,500 0
Other Salaries 59,681 59,681 59,115 566
Services 7,000 7,000 5,421 1,579
Materials 5,500 5,500 3,747 1,753
Total Treasurer's Office 127,681 127,681 123,783 3,898
County Clerk's Office
County Clerk's Salary 55,500 55,500 55,500 0
Other Salaries 201,435 201,435 160,485 10,950
Services 13,000 13,000 15,079 (2,079)
Materials 115,000 115,000 110,204 4,796
Election Grant Expense 64,770 64,770 16,445 48,325
Election 108,085 143,585 143,196 389
Total County Clerk's Office 557,790 593,280 530,909 62,381
Assessor's Office
Salaries 189,027 189,027 189,649 (622)
Services 20,100 20,100 11,503 8,597
Materials 10,000 10,000 9,037 963
Total Assessor's Office 5 219127 % 219,127 % 210,189 % 8,938
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

-continued-

Year Ended August 31, 2010

EXPENDITURES
General Government {con't)
General Expenditures

E.D. Director
Other
Medical Insurance
Postage
Professional Fees
Computer Services
Merit Commission
Flood Control
Economic Development
Planning Commission
Animal Conirol
Solid Waste Planning
Liability Insurance
Health Commitiee

Total General Expenditures

Educational Service Region Office
Services

Total Educational Service
Region Office

Courthouse
Salaries
Services
Materials

Total Courthouse
Morgan County Center
Salaries
Services
Materials

Total Morgan County Center

Total General Government

Variance With

Final Budget

Original Finat Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 160,500 § 160,500 $ 105,840 § 54,660
35,000 35,000 48,191 (13,191}
630,000 630,000 591,064 38,936
60,000 60,000 41,684 18,316
80,000 80,000 49,359 30,641
110,000 110,000 113,930 (3,930)
3,000 3,000 1,465 1,635
5,000 5,000 5,000 0
35,000 35,000 35,000 0
25,000 25,000 25,000 0
12,000 12,000 12,000
6,000 6,000 6,000
306,000 300,000 279,917 20,083
16,000 16,000 10,067 5,933
1,477,500 1,477,500 1,306,517 170,983
130,656 130,656 126,447 4,209
130,656 130,656 126,447 4,209
26,604 26,604 26,211 393
38,000 38,000 29,390 8,610
4,500 4,500 2,817 1,683
69,104 69,104 58,418 10,686
1,500 1,500 686 814
27,000 30,100 30,053 47
2,000 2,000 1,192 808
30,500 33,600 31,931 1,669

$ 2785013 $ 2823613 $ 2,556,020 § 267,593
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

-continued-

Year Ended August 31, 2010

Vatiance With
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
EXPENDITURES
Law and Judicial
Sheriff and Law Enforcement
Sheriff's Salary 65,775 § 65,775 § 65,775 § G
Other Salaries 696,800 696,800 639,424 57,376
Grant Expense 15,000 15,000 0 15,000
Services 94,200 94,200 81,653 12,547
Materiais 78,200 78,200 84,749 (6,549)
Total Sheriff and
Law Enforcement 949,975 949,975 871,601 78,374
Civil Defense Office
City/County Agreement 36,208 36,208 27,970 8,238
Payments to Other Governments 11,245 19,600 19,582 18
Total Civil Defense Office 47,453 55,808 47,552 8,256
Coroner's Office
Coroner's Salary 24,073 24,073 23,688 375
Other Salaries 8,642 8,642 8,642 0
Services 40,000 47,111 47,272 (161)
Materials 3.500 3,500 3,531 (31)
Totat Coroner's Office 76,215 83,326 83,143 183
Probation Office
Salaries 387,011 445,500 445 477 23
Services 12,620 12,920 11,337 1,583
Materials 2,210 2,210 2,124 86
Total Probation Office 402,141 460,630 458,838 1,692
County Jail
Sataries 947,705 947,705 938,559 9,146
Services 209,700 208,700 193,458 16,242
Materials 29,000 29,000 88,198 {59,198)
Victims Assistance 21,000 21,000 21,000 0
Total County Jail $ 1207405 § 1207405 & 1241215 § (33,810)
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

-continued-

Year Ended August 31, 2010

EXPENDITURES
Law and Judicial (con't)
Circuit Clerk's Office
Circuit Clerk's Salary
Other Salaries
Services
Materials

Total Circuit Clerk's Office

FPublic Defender's Office
Salaries

Total Public
Defender's Office

Court Related
Salaries
Materials
Care and Support of Minors
Court Appointed Counsel
Publication
Interpreters
Jury

Total Court Related

Circuit Judge's Office
Services
Materials
Equipment

Total Circuit Judge's Office

Associate Circuit Judge's Office
Services
Materials
Equipment

Total Associate Circuit
Judge's Office

Total Law and Judicial

Variance With

Final Budget

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
3 55,500 $ 55,500 $ 55,500 § 0
121,080 121,080 104,323 16,757
4,000 4,000 3,133 867
8,000 8,000 2,842 5,158
188,580 188,580 165,798 22,782
167,464 167,464 167,464 0
167,464 167,464 167,464 0
33,095 33,095 33,085 0
2,500 2,500 1,744 756
55,000 55,000 11,053 43,947
25,000 25,000 11,959 13,041
6,000 6,000 2,377 3,623
10,000 10,000 10,167 (167)
25,000 25,000 16,954 8,046
156,595 156,595 87,349 69,246
4,790 4,780 1,795 2,995
2,500 2,500 1,585 915
5,000 5,000 5,000
12,290 12,280 3,380 8,910
3,560 3,560 1,866 1,694
1,500 1,500 908 592
3,000 3,000 3,000
8,060 8,060 2,774 5,286
$ 3,216,178 $ 3,290,133 $ 3,129,214 % 160,919
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
-continued-

Year Ended August 31, 2010

Variance With

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Capital Outlay $ 432,028 3 432,028 § 78,449 $ 353,579

Total General Fund Expenditures $ 6,433,218 5 6545774 $§ 5,763,683 $ 782,091
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Year Ended August 31, 2010

Variance With
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUE
intergovernmental:
State S 860,000 § 860,000 $ 754,931 $ {105,069)
Interest 16,000 16,000 1,788 (14,212)
Total Revenue 876,000 876,000 756,719 (119,281)
EXPENDITURES
Transportation 800,000 800,000 688,052 111,948
Capital Outlay 500,000 500,000 182,844 317,156
Total Expenditures 1,300,000 1,300,000 870,896 429104

Net Change in Fund Balance $ (424,000) $ (424,000) (114,177) $ (548,385)

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 1,142,868

FUND BALANCE, ENDING $ 1,028,691
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LIHEAP FUND

MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

REVENUE

Intergovernmental:
Federal Grants
State Grants

Interest
Other

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Health and Human Services
Total Expenditures

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE, ENDING

Year Ended August 31, 2010

Variance With
Final Budget
QOriginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
2,000,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 1,101,661 $ (898,339)
490,704 490,704
670 870 124 (546)
104,000 104,000 99,740 (4,260)
2,104,670 2,104,670 1,692,229 (412 ,441)
2,105,000 2,105,000 1,681,160 423,840
2,105,000 2,105,000 1,681,160 423,840
(330) % (330) 11,069 11,399
12,410
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Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP)
August 31, 2010

MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Funding Progress
lliinois Municipal Retirement Fund

(Unaudited)
Actuarial

Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of (AAL) - AAL Funded Covered | Of Covered

Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b} (b-a) {a/b) (c) ({(b-a)/c)
12/31/09 3,493,338 | 5,576,732 1 2,083,394 62.64% | 1,408,331 147.93%
12/31/08 2,918,676 | 4,878,438 | 1,859,762 59.83% | 1,314,635 149.07%
12/31/07 3,903,635 ! 4,863,206 964,571 80.19% | 1,274,848 75.66%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2009 is
$3,355,551. On a market basis, the funded ratio would be 60.17%.
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Funding Progress
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Elected County Official (ECO)

August 31, 2010

(Unaudited)
Actuarial

Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of (AALY — AAL Funded Covered | Of Covered

Valuation Asseis Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) {b-a) (a/b) {c) ((b-a)/c)
12/31/09 1,487,512 2,632,577 1,145,065 56.50% 475,206 240.96%
12/31/08 1,395,109 | 2,377,604 982,495 58.68% 461,058 213.10%
12/31/07 1,247,658 | 2,246,301 998,643 55.54% 445,009 224.41%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2009 is
$1,420,810. On a market basis, the funded ratio would be 53.97%.
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Funding Progress
llinois Municipa! Retirement Fund
County Employees Other than SLEP and ECO

August 31, 2010

(Unaudited)
Actuarial

Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of (AAL) — AAL Funded Covered | Of Covered

Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) {(a/b) {c) ((b-a)/c)
12/31/09 110,603,471 | 13,697,122 | 3,093,651 77.41% | 3,931,224 78.69%
12/31/08 | 10,718,247 12,942,184 @ 2,223,937 82.82% 3,718,749 59.80%
12/31/07 | 12,053,005 | 12,303,704 250,699 97.96% | 3,543,734 7.07%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2009 is

$10,281,609. On a market basis, the funded ratio would be 75.06%.
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

August 31, 2010

County Animal General
Recorders Controi Assistance
Total Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash $ 4370194 % 12,442  § 1,811 § 340,520
Property Taxes Receivable 1,260,951
Intergovernmental Receivables:
Federal Grants 266,368
State Grants 56,714
Other Receivables 270,528
Due from Other Funds 196,744
Total Assets $ 6,421,499 § 12,442 § 1,811 $ 340,520
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Accounts Payable 3 208,950 §$ $ $
Deferred Revenue 54 601
Due to Other Funds 175,504
Total Liabilities 439,055 0 0 0
Fund Balance
Unreserved, Reported In:
Special Revenue Funds 5,982,444 12,442 1,811 340,520

Total Liabilities and
Fund Balance $ 6421499 $§ 12,442 $ 1,811  § 340,520




ilinois

Tuberculosis Health Unemployment Social Municipal
Sanitarium Department Savings Security Retirement
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

91,601 $ 473669 $ 15,729 & 217,183 § 181,519
53,828 169,542 161,459 269,087

141,816

305
253 20,418 116,673

145,734 $ 785,027 § 150882 § 399,060 $§ 567,279

$ 7,031 § $ $
2,095
17,005
0 9,126 0 0 17,005
145,734 775,901 15,982 399,060 550,274

145,734 § 785027 § 15,082 § 398,060 $ 567,279
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

August 31, 2010

Vital Drug Law

Statistics Fee Marriage Library
Fund Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS

Cash

Property Taxes Receivable
Intergovernmental Receivables:
Federal Grants
State Grants
Motor Fuel Tax
Other Receivables 2,158
Due from Other Funds

$ 6,287 § 27,515 § 9,814 § 2,702

Total Assets $ 6287 $

27,515 § 9,814 % 4,860

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Accounts Payable $ $ $ $
Deferred Revenue
Due to Other Funds

Total Liabilities 0

Fund Balance
Unreserved, Reported In:

Special Revenue Funds 6,287

27,515 9,814 4,860

Total Liabilities and
Fund Balance $ 6,287 %

27,515 % 9814 % 4,860




Child Probation Court Circuit Clerk Drug

Support Office Automation Operating Enforcement
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
48,023 S 53,805 $ 191,808 § 4,841 $ 10,958
4,325 6,118 535
48,023 $ 58,130 $ 197,926 % 5376 $ 10,958
$ $ $ $

0 0 0 0 0
48,023 58,130 197,926 5,376 10,958
48,023 $ 58,130 $ 197,926 $ 5,376 $ 10,958
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

August 31, 2010

Court
Document 911 Police Title IV-D
Storage Fee Vebhicle (KIDS)
Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash $ 148,713 § 958215 § 16,149 $ 2,491
Property Taxes Receivable
Intergovernmental Receivables:
Federal Grants 2,646
State Grants 1,363
Motor Fuel Tax
Other Receivables 6,042 86,799 400
Due from Other Funds
Total Assets $ 154,755 § 1,046,014 3 16,549 § 6,500

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Accounts Payable $ $ 8,878 & $
Deferred Revenue
Due to Other Funds

Total Liabilities 0 8,878 0 0

Fund Balance
Unreserved, Reported In:
Special Revenue Funds 154,755 1,037,136 16,549 6,500

Total Liabilities and
Fund Balance $ 154,756 § 1,046,014 § 16,5649 § 6,500




5

Bridge Marnico
Construction Special Aid Cooperative

Highway and Repair Service Matching Extension

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

354,414 § 127,186 10,505 537,695 §
379,421 1,569 126,473 99,572
18,496 127,142

752,331 § 254,328 12,074 664,168 § 99,572
$ $ 99,572
0 0 0 0 99,572
752,331 254,328 12,074 664,168 0
752,331 § 254,328 12,074 664,168 $ 99,6572




MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

August 31, 2010

Corporate
and Miscel- Regional
laneous IHWAP Planning
Grant CSBG Fund Commission
Programs Programs Fund
ASSETS
Cash $ 50,336 § 20,862 § 7480 % 29,933

Property Taxes Receivable

Intergovernmental Receivables:
Federal Grants 7,924 31,508 82,474
State Grants
Motor Fuel Tax

Other Receivables

Due from Other Funds 54,271 1,546 3,583

Total Assets $ 112,531 § 53,916 % 93,537 % 29,933

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Accounts Payable 3 14750 % 4839 § 57648 % 16,232

Deferred Revenue 7,766 37,827 6,913

Due to Other Funds 13,029 11,250 28,976 5,308
Total Liabilities 35,645 53,816 93,537 21,540

Fund Balance
Unreserved, Reported In:
Special Revenue Funds 76,986 0 0 8,393

Total Liabilities and
Fund Balance g 112,531 % 53,916 3 03,537 §$ 29.933




State's

Animal County Attorney
Control Clerk Law State's Capital
Bequeath GIS GIS Enforcement Attorney Improvements
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
3 56,466 $ 84,229 $ 10,607 § 3,351 § 26,377 $ 233,958
55,351
18,208
$ 56,466 $ 84229 § 10,607 § 3,351 § 99,936 9§ 233,958
$ $ $ $ $ $
98,936
0 0 0 0 99,936 0
56,466 84,229 10,607 3,351 0 233,958
$ 56,466 § 84,229 $ 10,607 $ 3,351 % 99,936 % 233,958
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Year Ended August 31, 2010

REVENUE

Taxes 3

Intergovernmental:
Federal
State
Local
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeits
Revenue from Services
interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Law and Judicial
Health and Human Services
Transportation
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures
Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund Transfers

Net change in fund balances
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 3

County Animal General
Recorders Controi Assistance
Total FFund Fund Fund
2,917,717 % 3 3 109
2,045,502
648,485
52,911 42 911
670
400,469 1,540
728,637 20,751 60,869 15,000
31,486 39 505
152,973
6,978,940 20,790 105,320 15,614
781,247 16,967
1,428,231 120,337
3,726,934 84,125
974,298
1,811,838 1,190 985
8,720,548 16,967 121,527 85,110
(1,741,608) 3,823 (16,207) (69,496)
417,923 18,000
(1,323,685) 3,823 1,793 (69,496)
7,306,129 8,619 18 410,016
5982444 § 12,442 § 1,811  § 340,520




Hlinois

Tuberculosis Health Unemployment Social Municipal
Sanitarium Department Savings Security Retirement
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

$ 100,415 § 315257 % $ 301,300 $ 499,292
564,334
311,096 68,317
2,935 185,799
370 6,134 58 532 589
103,720 1,382,620 58 301,832 568,198
6,542 71,853 218,725
23,540 208,833 399,810
100,420 1,399,603 11,653 92,369 106,616
4,795 40,160 46,644
51,029
100,420 1,450,632 46,530 413,215 771,795
3,300 (68,012} (46,472) (111,383) (203,597)
3,300 {68,012} (46,472) (111,383} (203,597)
142,434 843,913 62,454 510,443 753,871

S 145,734 § 775901 § 15,982 § 399,060 3 550,274
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Year Ended August 31, 2010

REVENUE

Taxes 3

Intergovernmental:
Federal
State
Local
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeits
Revenue from Services
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Law and Judicial
Health and Human Services
Transportation
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures
Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
interfund Transfers

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE, ENDING $

Vital Drug Law
Statistics Fee Marriage Library
Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ $ $
670
6,591 24,850
5,996
14 100 30 14
479
6,010 6,691 700 25,343
2,865 10
7,337 23,980
2,865 7,337 10 23,980
3,145 (646) 690 1,363
3,145 (646) 690 1,363
3,142 28,161 9,124 3,497
6,287 § 27,515  § 9814 § 4,860




$

Child Probation Court Circuit Clerk Drug

Support Office Automation Operating Enforcement
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ $ $ $
45,243 69,090 4,653 2,089
22,183
275 182 268 4 79
500
22,458 45,925 69,358 4,657 2,168
36,726 37,198 66,256 3,500 5,474
6,238 1,348
36,726 43,436 67,604 3,500 5,474
{14,268) 2,489 1,754 1,157 (3,306)
{14,268) 2,489 1,754 1,157 (3,306)
62,291 55,641 196,172 4,219 14,264
48,023 $ 58,130 § 197,926 % 5376 § 10,958
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Year Ended August 31, 2010

REVENUE

Taxes $

Intergovernmental:
Federal
State
Local
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeits
Revenue from Services
Iinterest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Law and Judicia!
Health and Human Services
Transportation
Capital Outiay

Total Expenditures
Revenue QOver (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund Transfers

Net change in fund balances
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE, ENDING $

Court
Document 911 Police Title IV-D
Storage Fee Vehicle (KIDS)
Fund Fund Fund Fund
3 336,842 § $
9,099
4,687
4,009
69,276
210 17,266 10
69,486 354,108 4 009 13,796
64,715 13,138
346,686
108,922
84,715 455,608 0 13,138
4771 (101,500) 4,009 658
4771 (101,500) 4,009 658
149,984 1,138,636 12,540 5,842
154,755 § 1,037,136  § 16,549 § 6,500




Bridge Marnico

Construction Special Aid Cooperative
Highway and Repair Service Matching Extension
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
5 705,527 § 236,305 § 2,257 § 235,174 § 185,239
13,472 1,560
10,000
151,229
884 129 29 1,985
49,536
907,176 259,906 2,286 238,719 185,239
185,239
879,911 2,788
229,153 210,242 131,776
1,109,064 210,242 2,788 131,776 185,239
(201,888) 49,664 (502) 106,943 0
(27,487) 27,487
(201,888) 22,177 {502} 134,430 0
954,219 232,151 12,576 529,738 0
b 752,331 § 2564328 § 12,074 § 664,168 $ 0
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Year Ended August 31, 2010

REVENUE

Taxes $

intergovernmental:
Federal
State
Local
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeits
Revenue from Services
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Law and Judicial
Health and Human Services
Transportation
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures
Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund Transfers

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE, ENDING $

Corporate Regional
and Miscel- Planning
laneous CSBG IHWAP Commission
Grant Programs Fund Fund
Programs :
)
226,148 251,529 979,450
41,123 51,585
86,000
92 17
42,560
309,831 251,529 1,031,127 86,017
83,492
311,212 289,356 984,894
311,212 289,356 984,894 83,492
(1,381) (37,827) 46,233 2,525
(1,381) (37.827) 46,233 2,525
78,367 37,827 (46,233) 5,868
76,986 % 0 % 0 8,393




Animal County State's

Control Clerk Attorney
Bequeath GIS GIS Law State's Capital
Fund Fund Fund Enforcement Attorney improvements
Fund Fund Fund
$ S $ $ $
171,677
242 404
101,453 5,942 1,204
834 283 29 102 423
1,151 56,557 2,190
1,985 158,293 5,971 1,204 414,183 2,613
193,554 2,000
12,942 402,445
649 1,070,306
12,942 194,203 2,000 0 402,445 1,070,306
(10,957) (35,910) 3,971 1,204 11,738 (1,067,693)
(11,738) 411,661
(10,957) (35,910) 3,971 1,204 0 (656,032)
67,423 120,139 6,636 2,147 0 889,990
56,466 $ 84,229 § 10,607 § 3,351 § 0 3 233,958
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ASSETS

Cash
Intergovernmental
Receivables:
Motor Fuel Tax

Total Assets
LIABILITIES

Intergovernmental
Payables:
Accounts Payable
Funds Available
for Distribution

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

August 31, 2010

Road
District
Motor
Tax Fuel Tax Inheritance
Collector's Allotment Tax
Total Fund Fund Fund
11,386,887 $ 10,299,827 586,350 265
77,814 77,814
11,464 701 $ 10,299,827 644,164 265
141,664 § 141,664
11,323,037 10,289,827 502,500 265
11,464,701 10,299,827 644,164 265
0 $ 0 0 0




Circuit Road

Clerk Tax Sale District
Trust Bond Indemnity Bridge
Fund Fund Fund Fund

18,733 $ 250,337 $ 174,200 $ 15,159

18,733 $ 250,337 $ 174,200 $ 15,159

$ b $
18,733 250,337 174,200 15,159
18,733 250,337 174,200 15,159
0 $ 0 § 0 3 0
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ASSETS

Cash
Intergovernmental
Receivables:
Motor Fuel Tax

Total Assets
LIABILITIES

Intergovernmental
Payables:
Accounts Payable
Funds Available
for Distribution

Total Liabilifies

NET ASSETS

MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
August 31, 2010

MCS

Sheriff Revolving Mealth

Trustee Bond Loan Benefit

Fund Fund Fund Fund
12,872 § 777 27,470 20,797
12,972 § 777 27,470 20,797

$

12,972 777 27,470 20,797
12,972 777 27,470 20,797
0 95 0 0 0
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AND CHANGES IN FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION

Tax Collector's Fund

Road District Motor Fuel
Tax Allotment Fund

Inheritance Tax Fund

Trust Fund

Circuit Clerk Bond Fund

Tax Sale Indemnity Fund

Road District Bridge Fund

Trustee Escrow Fund

Trustee Fund

Sheriff Bond Fund

MCS Revolving L.oan Fund

Health Benefit Fund

$

MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS

Year Ended August 31, 2010

Funds Funds
Available For Available For
Distribution Distribution

Beginning End

Of Year Receipts Disbursements Of Year
5427486 § 41,428,496 §$ 36,556,155 $ 10,299,827
482 494 1,184,727 1,164,721 502,500
2,336 48 833 50,804 265
18,825 7,882 7.974 18,733
296,047 1,622,066 1,687,776 250,337
252,638 11,562 90,000 174,200
15,146 80,033 80,020 15,159
609 0 609 0
14,466 45 1,539 12,972
750 141,089 141,062 777
27,434 36 0 27,470
63,783 1,142,704 1,185,690 20,797
6,602,014 $§ 45667473 $ 40946450 $ 11,323,037
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUATIONS AND TAX EXTENSIONS

Residential
Farm
Commercial
Industrial
Railroads

Total Equalized Assessed
Valuations

TAX EXTENSIONS

County Totals

School Districts
Junior College Districts
Cities and Villages

Road Districts

Airport Authority

Fire Protection Districts

Tax Increment Financing Districts
Special Districts

Library Districts

Total Tax Extensions

August 31, 2010

EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUATIONS

2009 2008 2007
$ 267,725,948 $ 262,998,535 $ 253,742,028
90,833,396 85,370,865 81,138,941
87,478,348 83,438,540 77,900,429
34,916,907 34,474,654 32,586,058
6,716,761 5,572,411 4,869,726
$ 487,671,360 $ 471,855,005 $ 450,237,182
$ 4,834,578 $ 4,695,240 % 4,506,423
21,961,908 21,197 075 20,011,288
2,217,011 2,153,568 2.077,128
5,100,704 4,991,919 4,679,154
1,858,825 1,819,774 1,746,550
125,869 120,908 116,132
160,625 160,014 152,983
482 660 482,173 383,873
79,283 80,833 79,245
64,492 60,742 58,527
$ 36885955 $ 35762246 § 33,811,303
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MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUATIONS, TAX LEVIES
RATES, EXTENSIONS AND COLLECTIONS

b

August 31, 2010

2009 2008 2007
TAX LEVIES

General $ 2,258,380 § 2,080,000 $ 1,983,370
lHinois Municipal Retirement 500,000 400,000 400,000
Highway 705,000 705,000 670,000
Bridge 236,000 235,000 220,000
Aid Matching 235,000 235,000 220,000
Health 315,000 315,000 310,000
Extension Education 185,000 185,000 182,500

General Assistance - 10,000 -
Tuberculosis 100,000 130,000 120,263
Social Security 300,000 400,000 400,000
Total $ 4834380 §$ 4,695000 $ 4,508,133

TAX RATES MAX

General As Needed 0.46310 0.44082 0.44052
{llinais Municipal Retirement  As Needed 0.10253 0.08478 0.08885
Highway 0.20000 0.14457 0.14941 0.14882
Bridge 0.25000 0.04840 0.04981 0.04887
Aid Matching 0.05000 0.04819 0.04981 0.04887
Health 0.10000 0.06460 0.06676 0.06886
Extension Education 0.05000 0.03794 0.03921 0.04054

General Assistance 0.10000 - $.00212 -
Tuberculosis 0.07500 0.02051 0.02756 0.02672
Social Security As Needed 0.06152 0.08478 0.08885

Total 0.99136 0.99506 1.00090




2009 2008 2007

TAX EXTENSIONS

General $ 2258406 $ 2,080,031 § 1,983,385
lllinois Municipal Retirement 500,009 400,039 400,035
Highway 705,026 704,999 670,043
Bridge 236,033 235,031 220,031
Aid Matching 235,009 235,031 220,031
Health 315,036 315,010 310,033
Extension Education 185,023 185,014 182,526
General Assistance - 10,003 -
Tuberculosis 100,021 130,043 120,303
Social Security 300,015 400,039 400,036
Total $ 4,834,578 $ 4,695,240 $ 4,506,423

TAX COLLECTIONS

General $ 1,020,422 $ 2,081,502 § 1,983,254
lllinois Municipal Retirement 225,922 400,323 400,008
Highway 318,555 705,499 669,998
Bridge 106,648 235,196 220,016
Aid Matching 106,185 235,196 220,016
Health 142,344 315,232 310,013
Extension Education 83,600 185,147 182,516
General Assistance - 10,013 -
Tuberculosis 45,194 130,136 120,295
Social Security 135,557 400,323 400,008
Total $ 2,184,427 $ 4698567 $ 4,506,124

EQUALIZED ASSESSED
VALUATIONS $ 487,671,360 § 471,855,005 $§ 450,237,182
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ZUMBAHLEN, EYTH, SURRATT, FOOTE & FLYNN, LTD.
Certified Public Accountants

KENNETH H. ZUMBAHLEN, CPA 1395 Lincoln Avenue * MEMBERS e

IOHN L. EYTH, CPA Jacksonville, Illinois 62650 ILLINOIS SOCTETY OF CPA
NICK SURRATT, CPA 217-245-5121 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CPA
CYNTHIA §. FOOTE, CPA .

VALERIE L. FLYNN, CPA Fax; 217-243-3356

E-mail: staff@zescpa.com

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FIANANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Members of the County Board
Morgan County, Hinois

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Morgan County, lllinois as of and for the
year ended August 31, 2010, which collectively comprise Morgan County, iilinois’ basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated January 24, 2011. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Iniernal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit, we considered Morgan County, Hlinois' internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Morgan County, llinois’ internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Morgan County,
lllinois’ internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Morgan County, illinois' financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and granis agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our fests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other maiters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information of the board, management, and appropriate

federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

WMW\M z/f\,w SWWW}%;? }ﬁwi/\?}f; 7,41
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January 24, 2011
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE

A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Members of the County Board
Morgan County, illinois

Compliance

We have audited Morgan County, llinois’ compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct and material effect on each of Morgan County, llinois’ major federal programs for the
year ended August 31, 2010. Morgan County, llinois' major federal programs are identified
in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Morgan
County, Ilinois’ management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Morgan County,
{liinois’ compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and OMB Circular A-133. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether
noncompiiance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Morgan County, Illinois' compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our
audit does not provide a legal determination of Morgan County, lilinois' compliance with
those requirements.

in our opinion, Morgan County, liinois complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended August 31, 2010,



internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Morgan County, lllinois is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we
considered Morgan County, lllinois' internal control over compliance with the requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Morgan
County, illinois’ internal contro! over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Morgan County,
[linois as of and for the year ended August 31, 2010, and have issued our report thereon
dated January 24, 2011. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming our opinions
on the financial statements that collectively comprise Morgan County, lilinois’ basic financial
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part
of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation {o the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended for the information of the board, management and federal awarding

agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

January 24, 2010



MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended August 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

9.

10.

The auditors' report expresses an unqualified opinion on the general purpose
financial statements of Morgan County, lllinois.

No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the general purpose financial
statements are reported in the Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the general purpose financial
statements of Morgan County, lilinois were disclosed during the audit.

No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the major federal award
programs is reported in the Report on Compliance With Requirements that Could
Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control
Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133.

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for
Morgan County, lllinois expresses an unqualified opinion.

The audit of the major federal award programs of Morgan County, lilinois did not
disclose any audit findings relating to major programs that are required to be
reported.

The programs tested as major programs include: Department of Health and
Human Services, Low Income Energy Assistance CFDA #93.568, Department of
Health and Human Services, lllinois Home Weatherization Assistance CFDA
#93.568, Department of Energy, Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income
Persons CFDA #81.042, and USDA WIC Nutrition Program CFDA #10.557.

The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

Morgan County, Illinois, was not determined to be a low-risk auditee.

Morgan County, Illinois had no audit findings from prior year.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT REPORTABLE CONDITIONS

NONE

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

NONE






MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended August 31, 2010

Federal Pass-Through
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA Grantors
GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE Number Numbers

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Direct Programs
Special Needs Assistance-2010 14.235 0346857190801
Special Needs Assistance-2011 14.235 [L.0346B5T190802

Subtotal CFDA 14.235

FEDERAL FUNDS PASSED THROUGH ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Community Services Block
Grant Programs:
EHP 93.569 10-231037
EHP 93.569 09-231037

Subtotal CFDA 93.569
CSGB-ARRA 93.710 2009
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Hornelessness Prevention & Rapid

Re-Housing - ARRA 14.257 09-261062

FEDERAL FUNDS PASSED THROUGH ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Bioterrorism 93.069 107181066
Bioterrorism 93.069 117181066
Public Health Emerg. Response - Pandemic 93.069 107181188
Public Health Emerg. Response - H1N1 93.069 107181283

Subtotal CFDA 93.069



Revenue

Recognized Expenditures
31,548 32,353
23,776 23,776
55,324 56,129
65,463 65,463
42,073 64,926

107,536 130,389
143,993 158,827
170,824 170,824
44,494 44,494
3,104 3,104
45,561 45,561
81,109 81,109
174,268 174,268



MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2010

Federal
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA
GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE Number

FEDERAL FUNDS PASSED THROUGH ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTHCARE AND FAMILY SERVICES

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Low Income Energy Assistance Program:
LIHEAP *

Home Weatherization Assistance Program:
IHWAP *

Subtotal CFDA 93.568

Child Support Enforcement Program
Child Support Enforcement Program

Subtotal CFDA 93.563
Medicaid

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Home Weatherization Assistance Program:
DOE *
DOE-ARRA *

Subtotal CFDA 81.042

FEDERAL FUNDS PASSED THROUGH ILLINOIS
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY
Emergency Management Preparedness
Grant

93.568

93.568

93.563
93.563

93.778

81.042
81.042

97.042

Pass-Through
Grantors
Numbers

10-22437

10-22137

08KCCO000068
2011

10-40137
2010

497-58830-4400



Revenue

Recognized Expenditures
1,101,661 1,101,661
165,347 165,347
1,267,008 1,267,008
6,324 6,324
2,775 2,775
9,099 9,089
141,349 141,349
100,515 109,337
713,588 713,588
814,103 822,925
26,029 26,029



MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2010

FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH
GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL FUNDS PASSED THROUGH ILLINOIS
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
WIC Admin
WIC Admin
WIC Supplemental Nutrition

Subtotal CFDA 10.557

USDA WIC Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

Federal
CFDA
Number

10.557
10.557
10.557

10.572

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Title X Family Planning
Title X Family Planning

Subtotal CFDA 93.217
Title XX Block Grant - Teen Preg. Prev.
Title XX Block Grant - Teen Preg. Prev.
Title XX Block Grant - Family Planning

Subtotal CFDA 93.667

MCH Biock Grant - Teen Preg. Prev.

Total

* Major Programs

93.217
93.217

93.667
83.667
93.667

93.994

Pass-Through
Grantors
Numbers

L11GL359900
M11GM359900
L11GL359800

M11GM359920

L11GL359350
M11GM359350

L11GL359230
M11GM359230
L11GL359000

L11GL359230



Revenue

Recognized Expenditures
98,431 § 98,431
28,918 28,918

387,473 387,473
514,822 514,822
1,000 3 1,000
43,805 3 43,805
22,336 22,336
66,141 66,141
19,710  § 19,710
1,545 1,545
31,300 31,300
52,555 52,555
1,672 & 1,672

3,545,723 § 3,593,037




MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
August 31, 2010

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all
federal award programs of Morgan County, Hiinois. The County’s reporting entity is defined
in Note 1 to the County’s financial statements. Federal awards passed through other
government agencies are included on the schedule.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the
modified accrual basis of accounting.

Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

Federal awards received are reflected in the County’s financial statements as revenue from
federal sources.

Note 2 — Non-Cash Assistance

The County Health Department received non-cash assistance for Special Supplemental
Nutrition program for Women, Infant and Children (WIC). The dollar value WIC Food
Instruments redemptions for WIC Food benefit issued by the Health Department was
$387,473. The CFDA # for the program is 10.557.

Note 3 -~ Reconciliation of Financial Statement Federal Revenues to Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards

Federal Revenues Per Financial Statements 5 3,173,282
Non-Cash Assistance Not Included in Financial
Statements 387,473
Federal Highway Grants Paid on Behalf of the County,
Reported at the State Level {15,032}
Federal Revenues Per Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards $ 3,545 723

Note 4 — Payments to Sub-recipients

Of the $29,029 Emergency Preparedness Grant that was received, $19,342 was passed on
to the City of Jacksonville, lllinois and $240 was passed on to the Village of South
Jacksonville, illinois.



MORGAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
August 31, 2010

Note 5 — Federal Insurance

Morgan County, llinois had no Federal insurance in effect during the year ended August 31,
2010,

Note 6 — Federal Loans/I_oan Guarantees

Morgan County, Illinois had no Federal loans or Federal loan guarantees outstanding as of
August 31, 2010.
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